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 K010000

 

A Life Safety Code Recertification and 

State Licensure Survey was conducted by 

the Indiana State Department of Health in 

accordance with 42 CFR 483.70(a).  

Survey Date: 12/09/14

Facility Number: 000367

Provider Number: 155458  

AIM Number: 100289280

Surveyor: Bridget Brown, Life Safety 

Code Specialist 

At this Life Safety Code survey, 

Highland Nursing and Rehabilitation 

Center was found not in compliance with 

Requirements for Participation in 

Medicare/Medicaid, 42 CFR Subpart 

483.70(a), Life Safety from Fire and the 

2000 edition of the National Fire 

Protection Association (NFPA) 101, Life 

Safety Code (LSC), Chapter 19, Existing 

Health Care Occupancies and 410 IAC 

16.2.

This one story facility was determined to 

be of Type II (222) construction and was 

fully sprinklered.  The facility has a fire 

alarm system with hard wired smoke 

detection in the corridors and spaces open 

to the corridors and battery powered 

K010000 Neither the signing or submission 

of the plan of correction shall 

constitute an admission of any 

deficiency or of any fact or 

conclusion set forth in the " 

Statement of Deficiencies ". This 

plan of correction is being 

submitted in good faith by the 

facility because it is the law. 

Compliance Date is 01/07/2015.
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smoke detectors in all resident rooms.  

The facility has the capacity for 38 and 

had a census of 30 at the time of this 

survey services are sprinklered

All areas with resident access are 

sprinklered.  Three detached storage 

sheds are unsprinklered.

Quality Review by Dennis Austill, Life 

Safety Code Specialist on 12/16/14.

The facility was found not in compliance 

with the aforementioned regulatory 

requirements as evidenced by:

NFPA 101 

LIFE SAFETY CODE STANDARD 

Exit access is arranged so that exits are 

readily accessible at all times in accordance 

with section 7.1.     19.2.1

K010038

SS=E

Based on observation and interview, the 

facility failed to ensure 1 of 3 exits were 

arranged to minimize tripping hazards in 

accordance with LSC Section 7.1.  LSC 

Section 7.1 requires means of egress for 

existing buildings shall comply with 

Chapter 7.  LSC Section 7.1.6 requires 

walking surfaces in the means of egress 

shall comply with 7.1.6.4.  LSC 7.1.6.4 

requires walking surfaces to be nominally 

level.  This deficient practice could affect 

visitors staff and 10 or more residents in 

K010038 1) Crack was filled and smoothed 

2) Audit of facility completed & no 

other concerns noted 3) Exterior 

surface cracks are a part of the 

Monthly Building Audit          Copy 

Attached 4) Audit will be 

conducted by the Maintenance 

Director, reviewed by the 

administrator and forwarded to 

the QA Committee. 5) 01/07/2015

01/07/2015  12:00:00AM
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west and southwest smoke 

compartments.

Findings include:

Based on observation with the 

maintenance director on 12/09/14 at 3:50 

p.m., the concrete exit discharge surface 

for the west exit was cracked across the 

width of the surface in two areas.  One 

concrete section nearest the exit door had 

shifted to create a 1/2 to 3/4 inch 

unleveled surface.  The maintenance 

director acknowledged the damage and 

said he had tried patching the crack 

neared the exit in the past.

3.1-19(b)

NFPA 101 

LIFE SAFETY CODE STANDARD 

Required automatic sprinkler systems are 

continuously maintained in reliable operating 

condition and are inspected and tested 

periodically.     19.7.6, 4.6.12, NFPA 13, 

NFPA 25, 9.7.5

K010062

SS=F

Based on observation and interview, the 

facility failed to ensure sprinkler valves 

and components for 1 of 1 automatic 

sprinkler systems was maintained 

accessible and free of obstructions .  

NFPA 25, 1-4.1 requires the owner shall 

provide ready accessibility to components 

of water based fire protection systems 

that require inspection, testing or 

K010062 1) Closet was re-organized for 

proper storage and sprinkler 

operation 2) No other concerns 

were noted 3) All dietary staff are 

being in-serviced concerning 

storage requirements. 4) 

Inspecting storage areas is a part 

of the monthly building audit to be 

done by the Maintenance 

Director, reviewed by the 

Administrator, and forwarded to 

the QA Committee. 5) 01/07/2015

01/07/2015  12:00:00AM
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maintenance. NFPA 25, A-1-4.1 states, 

the components are not required to be 

open or exposed. Doors, removable 

panels, or valve pits may be permitted to 

satisfy the need for accessibility. Such 

equipment should not be obstructed by 

features such as walls, ducts, columns, 

direct burial, or stock storage. This 

deficient practice affects all occupants.

Findings include:

Based on observation with the 

maintenance director on 12/09/14 at 1:15 

p.m., the sprinkler riser and valves for the 

automatic sprinkler system was located in 

a room designated for dietary storage.  

Boxes of supplies were stacked three feet 

high immediately in front of the sprinkler 

water control system and adjacent to the 

sides as high as the room would allow.  A 

sign hung over the sprinkler components 

which read in large letters: "NOTICE, 

Fire regulations require this space to be 

clear at all times."  The maintenance 

director agreed at the time of observation, 

the sign was ignored and the sprinkler 

valves and pipes were inaccessible 

without removing the stored cartons from 

the room.

3.1-19(b)

NFPA 101 K010076
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LIFE SAFETY CODE STANDARD 

Medical gas storage and administration 

areas are protected in accordance with 

NFPA 99, Standards for Health Care 

Facilities.

(a) Oxygen storage locations of greater than 

3,000 cu.ft. are enclosed by a one-hour 

separation.

(b) Locations for supply systems of greater 

than 3,000 cu.ft. are vented to the outside.    

NFPA 99 4.3.1.1.2,  19.3.2.4

SS=E

Based on observation and interview, the 

facility failed to ensure 1 of 13 cylinders 

of nonflammable gases in resident rooms 

was properly stored; chained or supported 

in a cylinder stand or cart.  NFPA 99, 

Health Care Facilities, 8-3.1.11.2(h) 

requires cylinder or container restraints 

shall meet NFPA 99, 4-3.5.2.1(b)27 

which requires freestanding cylinders be 

properly chained or supported in a proper 

cylinder stand or cart.  This deficient 

practice could affect visitors, staff and 10 

or more residents in the west and 

northwest smoke compartments.

Findings include:

Based on observation with the 

maintenance director on 12/09/14 at 

11:45 a.m., one oxygen e-cylinder was 

stored without support immediately 

outside of and adjacent to the west exit.  

The maintenance director acknowledged 

K010076 1) Cylinder was immediately 

correctly stored. 2) No other O2 

cylinders were stored incorrectly 

3) Nursing staff were in-serviced 

concerning proper storage of all 

oxygen cylinders. In-service 

attached. 4) Random checks at 

least twice weekly with immediate 

correction will be done by the 

DON/Designee until three 

consecutive checks reveal no 

improper storage of oxygen 

storage. 5) 01/07/2015  

01/07/2015  12:00:00AM
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at the time of observation, the cylinder 

should not have been left unsupported.

3.1-19(b)

NFPA 101 

LIFE SAFETY CODE STANDARD 

Electrical wiring and equipment is in 

accordance with NFPA 70,  National 

Electrical Code. 9.1.2

K010147

SS=E

Based on observation and interview, the 

facility failed to ensure electrical wiring 

and equipment in 1 of 4 smoke 

compartments was in compliance with 

NFPA 70, National Electrical Code, 

NFPA 70, 1999 edition, Article 

300-11(a) states raceways, cable 

assemblies, boxes, cabinets and fittings 

shall be securely fastened in place.  This 

deficient practice could affect staff, 

visitors and 10 or more residents in the 

center smoke compartment.

Findings include:

Based on observation with the 

maintenance director on 12/09/14 at 

K010147 1) Both units were temporarily 

securely re-attached to the wall. 

2) Facility audit completed to 

identify other loose outlets found 

no concerns. 3)  The units have 

been permanently re-attached to 

the wall by our electrical 

contractor 4) Inspection of 

electrical outlets is a part of the 

Monthly Building Audit done by 

the Maintenance Director, 

reviewed by the Administrator, 

and forwarded to the QA 

Committee. 5) 01/07/2015

01/07/2015  12:00:00AM
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between 11:30 and 2:20 p.m., surface 

wired conduit and a receptacle box was 

attached to the corridor wall near the 

south exit and near the laundry had each 

been secured to the wall with four 

drywall anchors.  The two top anchors for 

each box were hanging loose from the 

boxes and the boxes were pulled away 

from the walls. The maintenance director 

acknowledged at the time of observation 

the electrical boxes should have been 

held securely to each wail.

3.1-19(b)
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